
 
 

Regional Transportation Planning Agency - Local Transportation Commission 
Monterey County Service Authority for Freeways and Expressways 

Monterey County Regional Development Impact Fee Joint Powers Agency 
Email: info@tamcmonterey.org  

Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee 
Wednesday, February 7, 2024 

**6:00 PM** 
 

MEETING LOCATION 
55-B Plaza Circle, Salinas, California 93901 
Transportation Agency Conference Room 

 
Members of the public & non-voting members may join meeting online at:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/990276709?pwd=QXBRbWF6ajh6M3dOR3hhbGloRlhRZz09 
OR 

Via teleconference at +1 669 900 6833  
 

Meeting ID: 990 276 709 
Password: 352877 

 
Please note: If all committee members are present in person, public participation by Zoom is for 
convenience only and is not required by law. If the Zoom feed is lost for any reason, the meeting 

may be paused while a fix is attempted, but the meeting may continue at the discretion of the 
Chair.  

 
Please see all the special meeting instructions at the end of this agenda  

  

1. Quorum Check - Call to Order 
 Call to order and self-introductions. Committee bylaws specify that quorum shall consist of a 

majority (9) of the number of voting memberships actually filled at the time (16); the existence 
of any vacancies shall not be counted for purposes of establishing a quorum. 
 
If you are unable to attend, please contact your alternate. Your courtesy to the other 
Transportation Agency Committee members to assure a quorum is appreciated. 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 Any member of the public may address the Board on any item not on the agenda but within 

the jurisdiction of the Board. Under this item, each member of the public is allowed three 
minutes to address concerns. Comments in items on this agenda may be given when that 
agenda item is discussed. Persons who wish to address the Board for public comment or on 
an item on the agenda are encouraged to submit comments in writing to Maria at 
maria@tamcmonterey.org by 5:00 pm the Monday before the meeting, and such comments 

Page 1 of 35

mailto:info@tamcmonterey.org
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/990276709?pwd=QXBRbWF6ajh6M3dOR3hhbGloRlhRZz09
mailto:maria@tamcmonterey.org


will be distributed to the Board before the meeting. 
 
Alternative Agenda Format and Auxiliary Aids: If requested, the agenda shall be made 
available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 
202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC Sec. 12132), and the federal rules 
and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals requesting a disability-related 
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, may contact 
Transportation Agency staff at 831-775-0903. Auxiliary aids or services include wheelchair 
accessible facilities, sign language interpreters, Spanish language interpreters, and printed 
materials in large print, Braille or on disk. These requests may be made by a person with a 
disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in the public 
meeting and should be made at least 72 hours before the meeting. All reasonable efforts will 
be made to accommodate the request. 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
 Approve the staff recommendations for items listed below by majority vote with one motion. 

Any member may pull an item off the Consent Agenda to be moved to the end of the 
CONSENT AGENDA for discussion and action. 

 3.1. APPROVE the draft Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee Minutes for 
January 10, 2024. 

  - Maria Montiel 

   
The draft minutes of the January 10, 2024 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities 
Advisory Committee meeting are attached for review. 

 3.2. APPROVE application for the Active Transportation Support Program (ATSP) to 
award bike racks. 

  - Ariadne Sambrano 

   
Approval by the Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee is 
required for Active Transportation Support Program awards. The Point Lobos 
Foundation has submitted an application for bike racks in order to support their 
efforts to facilitate secure storage for cyclists to be able to visit Carmel River 
State Beach. 

4. RECEIVE presentation on the progress of the Salinas Valley Safe Routes to School Plan and 
the Participatory Budgeting process. 

 - Aaron Hernandez 

  
The Salinas Valley Safe Routes to School Plan will include recommendations for all 
public K-12 schools in the cities of Gonzales, Soledad, Greenfield, and King City. The 
Salinas Valley Safe Routes to School Plan includes a democratic process, called 
Participatory Budgeting, where community members vote to decide how public funds 
are spent in the cities of Gonzales, Soledad, Greenfield, and King City. The 
Transportation Agency for Monterey County is providing up to $250,000 to each city to 

Page 2 of 35



implement the highest voted projects. Greenfield and Soledad are the first two cities to 
complete the process. 

5. REVIEW and PROVIDE INPUT on the Draft AMBAG Complete Streets Policy 
 - Aaron Hernandez, Regina Valentine (AMBAG) 

  
With the passing of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act/Bipartisan 
Infrastructure Law of 2021, the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments 
(AMBAG) is required to conduct complete streets planning that prioritizes the safe and 
adequate accommodation of all users of the transportation system, including 
pedestrians, bicyclists, public transportation users, children, older individuals, 
individuals with disabilities, motorists, and freight vehicles.  

6. ANNOUNCEMENTS and/or COMMENTS 

7. ADJOURN 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Next Committee meeting will be held at 

Wednesday, March 6, 2024 at 6:00 P.M.  
1 Pendergrass Way, Sand City, California 93955 

Sand City Council Chambers 
A quorum of voting members is required to be present to hold this meeting. 

 
There will be a zoom link for hybrid participation by members of the public. 

 
Voting members: please note that the circumstances in which you may remotely 

teleconference have been severely curtailed and require prior notice and only certain 
justifications. Click here for more details. 

 
If you have any items for the next agenda, please submit them to: 

Aaron Hernandez, Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee Coordinator 
Aaron@tamcmonterey.org   

Documents relating to an item on the open session that are distributed to the Committee less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting shall be available for public inspection at the office of the 
Transportation Agency for Monterey County, 55-B Plaza Circle, Salinas, CA. Documents distributed 
to the Committee at the meeting by staff will be available at the meeting; documents distributed to 
the Committee by members of the public shall be made available after the meeting.   

Transportation Agency for Monterey County 
www.tamcmonterey.org 

55B Plaza Circle, Salinas, CA 93901 
TEL: 831-775-0903 

EMAIL: info@tamcmonterey.org 
 
The Committee Agenda will be prepared by Agency staff and will close at noon nine (9) working days 
before the regular meeting. Any member may request in writing an item to appear on the agenda. The 
request shall be made by the agenda deadline and any supporting papers must be furnished by that time 
or be readily available. If requested, the agenda shall be made available in appropriate alternative 
formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 

Page 3 of 35

https://www.tamcmonterey.org/files/de4e8914c/TAMC-Brown_Act_2023.pdf
https://www.tamcmonterey.org/
mailto:info@tamcmonterey.org


1990 (42 USC Sec. 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. 
Individuals requesting a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, may contact the Transportation Agency at 831-775-0903. Auxiliary aids or services include 
wheelchair accessible facilities, sign language interpreters, Spanish Languageinterpreters and printed 
materials, and printed materials in large print, Braille or on disk. These requests may be made by a 
person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in the public 
meeting, and should be made at least 72 hours before the meeting. All reasonable efforts will be made 
to accommodate the request. 
 

Page 4 of 35



 

Agenda Item 1. 

 
TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY  

Memorandum  
To: Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee 

From:  

Meeting Date: February 7, 2024 

Subject: Quorum Check - Call to Order 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
None 
 
WEB ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 

Page 5 of 35



 

Agenda Item 3.1. 

 
TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY  

Memorandum  
To: Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee 

From: Maria Montiel, Administrative Assistant 

Meeting Date: February 7, 2024 

Subject: Draft BPC Minutes 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
APPROVE the draft Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee Minutes for January 10, 
2024. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The draft minutes of the January 10, 2024 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee 
meeting are attached for review. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. BPC Draft January 10, 2024 MINUTES 
 
WEB ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 

Page 6 of 35



 TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY (TAMC)
Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee

Draft Minutes of January 10, 2024
Held at Transportation Agency Office

55-B Plaza Circle, Salinas CA 93901

Voting Members JUN
23

JUL
23

AUG
23

SEP
23

OCT
23

NOV
23

DEC
23

JAN
24

Eric Petersen, District 1 C N P C P P N P

Victor Tafoya– District 2
(David Tavarez)

A O - A E - O P

Mike Novo – District 3, Chair N M P N P P M P
Jeff Wriedt, District 4
(Frank Henderson)

C E P C P P E P

Martin Wegenstein, District 5, Vice Chair
(Jeff Lindenthal)

E E P E P P(A) E P

D. L. Johnson, Carmel-By-The Sea L T P L P - T P
Del Rey Oaks - vacant L I - L - - I -
Gonzales - Vacant E N - E - - N -

Ernest Gallardo, Greenfield D G P D P P G P

King City – vacant - - - -
Marina - Vacant - - - -
Gino Garcia, Monterey
(Abby Ostovar)

P E P E

Katie Stern, Pacific Grove
(Jung Hwa Kim) 

P E P E

Chris Flescher, Salinas
(Mark Lasnik)

P P P P

Elizabeth (Libby) Sofer, Sand City P E P P
Ralph Wege, Seaside
(Jan Valencia)

- P P(A) P

Soledad - Vacant - - - -

Marzette Henderson, Monterey Salinas Transit P P P P
Mark Chaffey, Velo Club of Monterey
(Alex Capelli)

P P P P

N. County Recreation & Park District - Vacant - - - -
Salinas Public Works - Vacant - - - -
Monterey County Public Works – Vacant - - - -
Caltrans - District 5 - Vacant - - - -
AMBAG
(Will Condon) 

- - - P(V)

CSUMB -vacant - - -
E – Excused VC – Video Conference
P(A) – Alternate TC – Teleconference 
A - Absent

TRANSPORTATION AGENCY STAFF JUN
23

JUL
23

AUG
23

SEP
23

OCT
23

NOV
23

DEC
23

JAN
24

Todd Muck, Executive Director - P E E

Page 7 of 35



Draft Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee Minutes of January 10, 2024
Page 2

Ariana Green, Principal 
Transportation Planner

- - - -

Maria Montiel, Administrative 
Assistant 

P P P P

Mike Zeller, Director of Programing 
and Project Delivery

P (VC) - - -

Laurie Williamson, Senior Engineer - - - -
Christina Watson, Director of 
Planning

P - P P

Janneke Strause, Associate 
Transportation Planner

P P P P

Aaron Hernandez, Transportation 
Planner

- - - -

Alissa Guther, Transportation Planner P - - -
Doug Bilse, Principal Engineer P (VC) - - -
Ariadne Sambrano, Transportation 
Planner

P P P

OTHERS PRESENT: 
Hans Hoffman Jr. Public Nathalie Gomez Public
Robin Lee Public Jackson Silva Public
Mari Lynch Public Berry Jones Public
Elias Rodriguez Public

1. Chair Wegenstein called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. A quorum was established, and Maria 
Montiel took roll call.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Committee member Libby Sofer announced that the Sand City was awarded funding and is 
looking into a multi-use trail near Canyon Del Rey to La Plaza.

Mari Lynch, member of public, announced that the new California bike laws are posted at 
bikemonterey.org in (English/ Spanish).

Committee member Ernie Gallardo announced that Hector Chavez is closing his doors and 
retiring after 40 years.

3. BEGINNING OF CONSENT AGENDA 
M/S/C Novo/Wriedt

Abstain: DL Johnson and Martin Wegenstein 
3.1 Approved minutes of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee meeting of 

November 1, 2023.
END OF CONSENT AGENDA

4. MONTEREY COUNTY BICYCLE MAP

Page 8 of 35



Draft Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee Minutes of January 10, 2024
Page 3

The Committee received a presentation and provided input on the proposed distribution plan 
for the 2023 Monterey County Bicycle Map.

Ariadne Sambrano, Transportation Planner reported on the distribution plan for the 2023 
Monterey County Bicycle Map. She noted that the distribution plan is a strategic effort to 
promote bicycling as a sustainable mode of transportation. Sambrano noted that in addition to 
conventional distribution, a promotional campaign is planned to enhance the map’s visibility. 
She noted that engaging youth and bicyclists in this campaign, particularly through volunteer 
opportunities, will add a dynamic element to our outreach efforts, fostering a sense of 
community involvement and responsibility. 

In conclusion Ms. Sambrano noted that the distribution plan will be monitored by tracking the 
number of maps distributed.  She noted that gathering user feedback will be a crucial aspect of 
this process, and providing strategic partnerships and promotional efforts, will ensure the map 
remails valuable and up-to-date resources for the Monterey County community. She shared an 
updated bike map list with new location added since 2015. The committee was asked to review 
and provide edits to the attached distribution list.

The Committee had the following comments and input on the 2023 Monterey County Bicycle 
Map:

• Consider distributing in the area you represent (Committee members)
• Consider having a flyer with QR code to the online map for easy access
• Consider coffee shops
• Consider the Crossroads, Carmel
• Consider REI they are expecting a few bike maps
• Consider libraries in Castroville and Hartnell College
• Consider “Next Door” platform
• Consider sending an updated list 
• Consider distributing at the “First Friday”
• Consider maps at Monterey-Salinas Transit bus stops
• Consider the Chamber of Commerce
• Consider Visitor Centers
• Consider the Big Sur library
• Consider High School libraries and City Halls
• Consider the Salinas Sport Centers

Page 9 of 35



Draft Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee Minutes of January 10, 2024
Page 4

5. BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES ADVISORY COMMITTEE BYLAWS

M/S/C

The Committee received a presentation from the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
Bylaws Subcommittee on proposed changes to the Committee Bylaws and provided input on the 
Bylaws Subcommittee recommendation.

Janneke Strause, Associate Transportation Planner reported that the Transportation Agency 
established a Citizens Advisory Committee for Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities to act as its 
discretion, in response to State and federal requirements for citizens’ participation.

Chair Martin Wegenstein reported that he discussed with the subcommittee, and they came up 
with a suggested draft of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee that was presented. 

In conclusion Ms. Strause noted that the agency staff will prepare a revised draft of the bylaws 
based on feedback from the Committee and bring the item back at a future meeting for 
consideration and recommendation to the TAMC Board.

Wriedt/Wege/unanimous

Committee member Wriedt motioned to take to updated Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee Bylaws to the TAMC Board for approval the motion was seconded by committee 
member Ralph Wege.

6. SCENIC ROUTE 68 CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT PROJECT UPDATE

The Committee received an update on the Scenic State Route 68 Corridor Improvement project 
and provided input.

Doug Bilse, Principal Engineer reported that Caltrans is proposing to improve traffic operations 
and reduce collisions and connect wildlife habitats on an approximately nine-mile stretch of 
State Route 68 in Monterey County by modifying the design of nine intersections from Josselyn 
Canyon Road to San Benancio Road and providing five new underground wildlife crossings 
animals can use to cross under the highway.

In conclusion, Mr. Bilse reported that two build alternatives are being evaluated in the Project 
Approval and Environmental Document phase. Alternative 1 would convert nine intersections into 
roundabouts: eight single-lane roundabouts and one two-lane roundabout (at the intersection of 
SR 218). He noted that alternative 2 would include expanded signalized intersections with 
adaptive signal control technology and enhanced lane channelization to provide auxiliary through 
lanes and additional right and left turn lanes. He noted that both alternatives would provide 
improved bicycle and pedestrian facilities and replacement lighting where necessary.

Page 10 of 35



Draft Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee Minutes of January 10, 2024
Page 5

The Committee had the following comments and input on the Scenic State Route 68 Corridor 
Improvement project:

• Consider “White “signage with black letters
• Consider education on how to navigate on the roundabout for all users
• Don’t use walkways
• Consider signage “Share the road”

7. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND/OR COMMENTS

Janneke Strause announced that staff is finalizing a grant application to update the Active 
Transportation Plan and is seeking letters of support. She also noted that it will be her last 
meeting before her maternity leave and will be back in August.

8. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Novo adjourned the meeting at 7:52 p.m.

Commented [JS1]:  I’m not sure what this means

Page 11 of 35



 

Agenda Item 3.2. 

 
TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY  

Memorandum  
To: Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee 

From: Ariadne Sambrano, Transportation Planner 

Meeting Date: February 7, 2024 

Subject: Active Transportation Support Program Application Approval 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
APPROVE application for the Active Transportation Support Program (ATSP) to award bike racks. 
 
SUMMARY: 
Approval by the Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee is required for Active 
Transportation Support Program awards. The Point Lobos Foundation has submitted an application 
for bike racks in order to support their efforts to facilitate secure storage for cyclists to be able to visit 
Carmel River State Beach. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The Point Lobos Foundation has requested $1,013.56 for two bike racks, each accommodating seven 
bikes, costing $463.87 each, plus sales tax of $85.82. The requested $1,013.56 will be covered by 
funding budgeted for the Active Transportation Support Program. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
This is the first application the Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee has received from this applicant for 
the Active Transportation Support Program, and staff recommends approving this request to cover 
the cost of bike racks at the Carmel River State Beach.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. TAMC Grant Application Bike Racks - Point Lobos Foundation 
2. PLF TAMC Bike Rack Grant Site Photos and Map 
3. Point Lobos Foundation Email 
 
WEB ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 

Page 12 of 35



Page 13 of 35



Page 14 of 35



Page 15 of 35



Point Lobos Foundation Active Transportation Grant Application Photos and Map 

Proposed Locations would be at the Lagoon parking lot (near Mara Beach Carmel pin 
above, photo below) oB Scenic Road. Second location is oB Ribera Road in Carmel 
Meadows (just above the Carmel Meadows trail pin.) The second location oB Ribera Road is 
at the top of the stairs that access the lower trail and beach access. 

 

 

Area at top of stairs to Carmel Meadows Trail oB Road.

Page 16 of 35



��������	��
�������������������������������������������������������� !�������"#$%���$&$'($)*+,)%�-./0./1/2�-1324�567$3�5)%�8���9�:&)��$� �)%�8��"��:;:$���)�<($)*+�-�����;�:���'�=0�6>?@�,�756A�>%!��B�;!�C)����@�$�$'(#8DEFGHIJKLM��NOIKP�QRS�TRG�GLUHLVHKW�RSG�IXXYHZI[HRK\��]̂_�̀RGGQ�[OL�aRRWYL�bGHUL�YHKP�JHJ�KR[�VRGPM�̀R�]�OIULZGLI[LJ�IK�I[[IZO_LK[�VH[O�[OL�̀H[L�_IX�IKJ�XOR[R̀�Ì�I�XJT\���NOL�cRSKJI[HRKM�Ì�I�dIYHTRGKHI�e[I[L�fIGP̀�dRRXLGI[HKW�F̀ R̀ZHI[HRKM��XSGXR̀L�H̀�[R�XGRUHJLLgSHX_LK[M�_I[LGHIỲ�IKJ�RZZÌHRKIYYQ�ZRK[GIZ[�YIhRG�[R�̀SXXRG[�XGRiLZ[̀�VH[OHK�[OL�TRSG�dIG_LY�FGLIe[I[L�fIGP̀M�VOHZO�HKZYSJL̀M�dIG_LY�jHULG�e[I[L�kLIZO�IKJ�fRHK[�lRhR̀�e[I[L�mI[SGIY�jL̀LGUL\��cRG[OH̀�XGRiLZ[M�dF�e[I[L�fIGP̀�HJLK[HTHLJ�[OL�XGRXR̀LJ�YRZI[HRKM�[OL�dIG_LY�jHULG�e[I[L�kLIZO�dR__H[[LLIXXGRULJ�[OL�YRZI[HRK�IKJ�WGIK[�IXXYHZI[HRK�IKJ�[OL�IXXYHZI[HRK�VÌ�̀Sh_H[[LJ\�nKZL�[OL�hHPL�GIZP̀IGL�IXXGRULJM�[OL�H[L_ �̀IGL�WHULK�[R�dIYHTRGKHI�e[I[L�fIGP̀\����]T�QRS�KLLJ�_RGL�HKTRG_I[HRK�[OIK�[OH̀M�XYLÌL�YL[�_L�PKRV�IKJ�]�ZIK�VRGP�VH[O�dF�e[I[L�fIGP̀�[R�WL[[OI[�IJJH[HRKIY�HKTRG_I[HRK\����NOIKP�QRS�IWIHK�TRG�QRSG�OLYX�HK�XGRZL̀ H̀KW�RSG�WGIK[�IXXYHZI[HRK\eHKZLGLYQMoI[OYLLK�lLLpqLZS[HUL�bHGLZ[RGrs�aIGJLK�dRSG[M�eSH[L�tsuvRK[LGLQM�dF���wxwysNLYLXORKLz��{ruu|�xxr}~��~M�Lq[\�tsteSXXRG[�fRHK[�lRhR̀�hQ�_IPHKW�I�WHT[M�̀ORXXHKW�RSG�̀[RGLM�RG�hLZR_HKW�I�_L_hLG�[RJIQ\�cRYYRV�S̀RK�cIZLhRRP�IKJ�]K̀[IWGI_�TRG�SX�[R�JI[L�HKTRG_I[HRK�RK�[OL�jL̀LGUL�IKJ�SXZR_HKW�LULK[̀M�IKJ�UH̀H[S̀�RKYHKL\���7��������/4��/1/2�����31��@6�5)%�8���9�:&)��$� �)%�8��"��:;:$���)�<($)*+��)$��3������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����������¡� ¢�£��������� ���¤�������¥�����¦��¡������§��������������¦��������¦�������������������������� ������������� �������������������������������������¦����̈������¢���©������ª��¢�����«����������������������������¦��������������¢��������¬��������������«���������¢����¦���������������������������¦��������¡��� ������������ ������������������� ������������¦�� ������������������«������¬�������������������������� �����������¦������������������¬�«�����«���ª������������������¢������ ��������¦���� ������ ��������£���«���������������®��̄���°��������
Page 17 of 35



 

Agenda Item 4. 

 
TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY  

Memorandum  
To: Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee 

From: Aaron Hernandez, Transportation Planner 

Meeting Date: February 7, 2024 

Subject: Salinas Valley Safe Routes to School Plan and Participatory Budgeting 
Update 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
RECEIVE presentation on the progress of the Salinas Valley Safe Routes to School Plan and the 
Participatory Budgeting process. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Salinas Valley Safe Routes to School Plan will include recommendations for all public K-12 
schools in the cities of Gonzales, Soledad, Greenfield, and King City. The Salinas Valley Safe Routes 
to School Plan includes a democratic process, called Participatory Budgeting, where community 
members vote to decide how public funds are spent in the cities of Gonzales, Soledad, Greenfield, 
and King City. The Transportation Agency for Monterey County is providing up to $250,000 to each 
city to implement the highest voted projects. Greenfield and Soledad are the first two cities to 
complete the process. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The Salinas Valley Safe Routes to School Plan is funded through a $664,127 Caltrans Sustainable 
Transportation Planning Grant and $126,501 of Measure X Safe Routes to School Program funds as 
is reflected in the approved agency budget. The projects selected through the Participatory Budgeting 
process are funded by $1 million ($250,000 for four cities) in Regional Surface Transportation 
Program Reserve funds from the fiscal year 20/21-22/23 program cycle. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Participatory Budgeting process is designed to fast-track funding and implementation of safe 
routes to school projects that are meaningful to community members. In October 2022, a Soledad 
Safe Routes to School Steering Committee was formed to assist in developing the process and 
engaging the greater community. Eighteen community members served on the Committee and, on 
average, 11 members attended at least 7 of the 9 steering committee meetings. 
 
The Process: 

1. Creating the Ballot - the Soledad Safe Routes to School Steering Committee, made up of 
residents and community advocates, worked with Safe Routes to School program partners and 
the City of Soledad to develop a list of projects for the community to vote on. 

2. Election Kickoff - the Election kicked-off at the Thursday Farmer's Market on May 18, 2023 
where the public had an opportunity to learn about the projects, ask questions, and cast their 
vote. 

Page 18 of 35



3. Voting - The public was able to vote for their favorite projects for a 1-week period (May 18 - 
May 25) at ballot drop-off sites or online. 

4. Election Results - the winning projects were announced at the November 15, 2023 Soledad 
City Council meeting. 

 
Election Results: 
The ballot included 18 street safety projects on corridors that received the most comments during the 
Safe Routes to School Plan public outreach. During the one-week voting period, a total of 246 
community members voted for their favorite projects. Of those 246 ballots, 127 ballots were in 
Spanish, 212 were paper and 34 were submitted online. 
 
After the ballots were collected and counted, the Steering Committee reviewed the election results 
and recommended to City Council that the following projects be funded to make the most of the 
$250,000 grant from the Transportation Agency (full list of projects linked below). On November 15, 
2023, the Soledad City Council approved the recommendation to implement the following projects: 
 
Project 
Number 

Project Name Cost 
Estimate 

Total Votes 

3 Orchard Lane and Gabilan Drive Pedestrian Improvements $63,000 107 

6 Main Street and Gabilan Drive Intersection Improvements $135,250 95 

5 Benito Street and Gabilan Drive Pedestrian Improvements $11,000 61 

12 Orchard Lane Pedestrian Improvements $23,000 40 
 
Online as web attachments are the election results and the voter guides in English and in Spanish. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
None 
 
WEB ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Soledad Participatory Budgeting Election Results 
2. Soledad Participatory Budgeting Voter Guide 
3. Presupuesto Participativo Soledad Guia de Votacion 

 
 

Page 19 of 35

https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/EevTKg9WBh5FghILrRS-1wQBBr3cnslqZSgi22AFj_OxeQ?e=zuzOEN
https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/EaXsmDhogo5DgTS8dkVlzRQBee09v2nCUnajxkZizwr7MQ?e=E3qZm1
https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/EdNqqlkL8JtGmqRlX5zbLxEBWI4r-YAN6hkaMo0h2MP-Gg?e=HOilZV


 

Agenda Item 5. 

 
TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY  

Memorandum  
To: Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Advisory Committee 

From: Aaron Hernandez, Transportation Planner, Regina Valentine (AMBAG) 

Meeting Date: February 7, 2024 

Subject: Draft AMBAG Complete Streets Policy 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
REVIEW and PROVIDE INPUT on the Draft AMBAG Complete Streets Policy 
 
SUMMARY: 
With the passing of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act/Bipartisan Infrastructure Law of 2021, 
the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) is required to conduct complete 
streets planning that prioritizes the safe and adequate accommodation of all users of the 
transportation system, including pedestrians, bicyclists, public transportation users, children, older 
individuals, individuals with disabilities, motorists, and freight vehicles.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
AMBAG, as the federally designated Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Monterey Bay 
region, is required to set aside a portion of the agency’s Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
Metropolitan Planning Funds (PL funds) allocation to conduct complete streets planning. The 
Complete Streets Policy can be used by agencies to guide the development of plans, projects and 
associated grant applications. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Complete streets prioritize the safe and adequate accommodation of all users of the transportation 
system, including pedestrians, bicyclists, public transportation users, children, older individuals, 
individuals with disabilities, motorists, and freight vehicles. 
 
As identified in AMBAG’s Overall Work Program, staff developed a Draft Complete Streets Policy in 
coordination with AMBAG’s member agencies, including the Transportation Agency of Monterey 
County. Although this is a new federal requirement, complete streets planning has been a priority 
historically for AMBAG and the jurisdictions in the Monterey Bay region. As an example, AMBAG, the 
Transportation Agency for Monterey County and Santa Cruz Regional Transportation Commission 
jointly prepared a Monterey Bay Area Complete Streets Guidebook in August 2013. For this reason, 
this Complete Streets Policy serves more to memorialize the transportation planning work already 
being conducted in the region.   
 
Key sections of AMBAG’s Complete Streets Policy are listed and described below: 

• Introduction: Introduction to the policy 
• Purpose and Need: Why the policy was prepared 
• Complete Streets Definition: AMBAG’s definition of complete streets 

Page 20 of 35



• Complete Streets Vision: AMBAG’s complete streets vision for the region 
• Complete Streets Goals: The goals of the policy 
• Principles of Complete Streets: The key policy principles and considerations 
• Complete Streets Policy: AMBAG’s commitment to complete streets during, “…the 

development of all transportation infrastructures within the Monterey Bay region at all phases 
of their development, including planning and land use, scoping, design approvals, 
implementation, and performance monitoring.” 

• Consistency with Regulations: The policy’s consistency with federal, state, and local 
regulations 

• Scope of Complete Streets Policy: When the policy applies 
• Exceptions: When the policy does not apply 
• Design Guidance: Sources for design guidance, standards, and recommendations 
• Context Sensitivity: AMBAG’s recognition that complete streets projects should be 

context‐sensitive to a community’s physical, economic, and social setting 
• Evaluation and Performance Measures: Suggested performance measures to evaluate the 

implementation of complete streets 
• Implementation and Reporting: How AMBAG will implement and report progress on the 

policy 
• References: Links to design guidance and regional complete streets initiatives 

 
Below are upcoming key dates for developing AMBAG’s Complete Streets Policy: 

• February 2024: Present the Draft AMBAG Complete Streets Policy to regional Advisory 
Committees, Planning Directors Forum, and to the AMBAG Board of Directors 

• February 1, 2024 – March 15, 2024: Public Comment Period 
• March 2024: Prepare the Final AMBAG Complete Streets Policy 
• April 2024: Present the Final AMBAG Complete Streets Policy to regional Advisory 

Committees and Planning Directors Forum 
• May 8, 2024: AMBAG Board of Directors will be asked to adopt the Final AMBAG Complete 

Streets Policy for eventual incorporation into the 2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan/ 
Sustainable Communities Strategy (MTP/SCS) 

 
The Draft AMBAG Complete Streets Policy is included as Attachment 1. Committee members are 
asked to provide comments on the draft policy by March 15, 2024. Comments should be emailed to 
Regina Valentine at rvalentine@ambag.org. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft AMBAG Complete Streets Policy 
 
WEB ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 

Page 21 of 35

mailto:rvalentine@ambag.org


ASSOCIATION OF MONTEREY 
BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS 

COMPLETE STREETS POLICY 
ft – February 2024 

Page 22 of 35



Table of Contents 
ti .................................................................................................................................................. 1 

Purpose and Need......................................................................................................................................... 1 

ti .......................................................................................................................... 2 

................................................................................................................................ 3 

Complete Streets Goals................................................................................................................................. 3 

...................................................................................................................... 3 

................................................................................................................................ 4 

ti ....................................................................................................................... 5 

................................................................................................................. 6 

ti ..................................................................................................................................................... 6 

........................................................................................................................................... 7 

ti ......................................................................................................................................... 7 

ti ........................................................................................................ 8 

ti ti ..................................................................................................................... 9 

................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Page 23 of 35



1 

Association of Monterey Bay Area 
Governments Complete Streets Policy 

ti
ti

ti
ti Monterey Bay Area Complete 

Streets Guidebook, 

ti ti to 
ti ti

ti ti d ti
ti ti

AMBAG’s ti
ti ti to 

ti
rsons 

ti

complete s

ti ti ti ti
ti ti ti

ti ti
ti ti ti

Purpose and Need 
to accommodate 

ti
ti -

AMBAG ti , O
ti complete streets p

Jobs Act ti complete streets 
concept, AMBAG ti ft
access 

Page 24 of 35



2 

ti - Monterey
1 

T e Monterey Bay ’s r and more 
ti

As ti s 
ti

Instead, ti

. , 
ti ti ti

AMBAG’s Complete Streets P
ti ted ti
ti y 

ti
complete streets ti ti

ti ti ti
s

rsons 
ti ti

Complete s
ti ti
also ti

ti May 2023 
Monterey-

a bus stop.2 

complete s streets and roads a 
ti
ti ti

ti
ti

As ti ti complete streets 
and ti

street ti Some 
ti

1 ti – 2022 
ti by County, ti

2 M ti -
-September-

Page 25 of 35



3 

ti
- -

ti

Complete Streets Vision 
AMBAG’s 

ti ti

ti
ti ti

ti
ti ti

located on ti - - ay. 

Complete Streets Goals 
Complete Streets 

1.  
ti ,  

Monterey Bay ti .
2. ti  

ti  
Monterey Bay .

3. Create a  
ti ti ti  

.
4. complete s  

5. Support communal areas, and users 
 

6. , ti  
and 

prosperous ti
7. ti ti  

ti
8. ti ti .

Principles of Complete Streets 
AMBAG’s Complete Street P y

1. ti
ti .

2. s ti ti

Page 26 of 35



4 

3. s 
s  

ti users  

4. Ensures ti - -  
ti users ti users and 
ti ti

5. s ti ti
6. s user  

needs.
7. s ti

 
8. s rti land 

 
9. s ti  

ti .
10. ti s - -
11. s ti ti

ti ti
12. s ti ti ti  

.
13. Supports ment  

ti ti

Complete Streets Policy 
AMBAG 

ti , 
ti ti

ti ti
projects 

and , ti
ti ti

ties. 

AMBAG complete s Monterey Bay and, 
ti

AMBAG ti
ti

Monterey Bay 
ti

. ti ti ti
ti

Page 27 of 35



5 

ti
ti

ti ti ti
ti ti -

ti ti
ti

ti - ti ti
ti

ederal t l
-

ti ti
ti

complete s ti
ti ti

ti ti General P ti

ti ti
state, and ti ti

 ti r  
ti 37 d Caltrans' 

ti  
 

ti  
- ti ti  

ti

support AMBAG 2045 MTP/SCS. ti
ti Monterey Bay Area 

Complete Streets Guidebook
ti ti . 

ti ti
ti ti ti

AMBAG also ti
ti ti ti

ti , a 
ti ti ti

element General Plans so, to support complete streets and 
-

. omplete s ti

Page 28 of 35



6 

Zero ti to 
ti

, as complementary o local complete streets 

Scope of Complete Streets Policy 
ti ti

- ti
ti

ti

AMBAG’s Complete Streets P
- - ti ti ti

ti ti , under 
AMBAG’s ti

complete streets p ti
ti ti planned ti

. 

1.  
ti

2. ti are  
a complete s

3. AMBAG ti  
ti

4. AMBAG ti complete s  
ti  

complete s ti
ti

5. ti ti  
ti ,  

Monterey Bay 
6. Monterey Bay  

supported 
7. AMBAG  

 
ti

ti
AMBAG’s Complete Streets P Monterey Bay 

ti s ti
ti . ti only 

ti

Page 29 of 35



7 

1. ti  
ti ti  

areas, .
2. .
3. ti  

ti . E ti
 ti ’s ti

 ti
 ti

.
4. ti  

 
.

5. ti  
ti . ti  

probable use —  
.

6.  
ti ti

 ti
 ould .

7. due to projects 
.

8. -  
ti .

9. ti and 
tti ti

Design Guidance 
AMBAG ti

ti ti to 
ti ft

ti
ti ti

tf ti
A non- ti

ti p

ti
AMBAG 

ti
ti

T

Page 30 of 35



8 

ti ti
ti tti , and 

ti
s ti

ti

ti

ti
AMBAG measures 

ti measures 
could , 

1. complete streets p
2. - ti
3.
4.
5.
6. ti
7. ti

 
8. ti , d  

ti  
ti

9. ti ti  
ti

10. ti
11. ti ti ti ti  

- ti
12.
13. M ti -  

ti-
14. N
15.
16. reconstructed curb ramps
17.
18. ti  

routes
19. ti ti .
20. ti  

21. ti ti  

Page 31 of 35



9 

22. ti
23. ti
24. Project-
25. ti  

ti ti

ti ti
AMBAG ti

ti ti ti Monterey Bay 
AMBAG complete s

ti
. 

AMBAG’s Complete Streets P - ti
ti ti

to all users , . AMBAG 
ti ti

complete s AMBAG 
ti ti

ti MTP/SCS, Complete Streets 
AMBAG MTP/SCSs ti /SCS 

ti
/SCS and ti

MTIP ti
MTP/SCS and M complete streets, 

1. Complete s M  
MTP/SCS update.

2. Complete street projects expected to be 
MTIP and MTP/SCS.

3. MTIP and MTP/SCS ti ti complete 
streets.

AMBAG Complete Streets P
AMBAG MTP/SCS updates

ti ti
ti AMBAG Board ti

Page 32 of 35



10 

References 
recommended complete streets d

elements ti

1. ,
fh

2. - -
countermeasures/road- - - ti

3. ti ,
fh fh

4. ti - ,
fh ti

 
5. ,

- - -89-101-separated-
-lane- -and- -

6. ti ,
- -tools/resources- -

- -and-countermeasure
7. ,

fh ti
8. ti ,

fh ti
9. ti ti ,

- - -10-33- -
- ti -

10. ti  
,

fh ti ti  

11. ti ,
ft -

ti ft
12. U.S. Access Board’s - - ,

-
13. ti ,

-and- -standards/
14. ti ti ,

ti -complete-streets- ti
15. ,

ti ti

Page 33 of 35



11 

16. ,

17. ti ,
- - - - - - -

ti -2012/
18. ti ti , 

ti ti
19. NACTO , ti -street- -

20. NACTO tti ,

21. , ti - -
-

22. , ti -street-
-

23. NACTO , ti -
street- -

24. ITE ti ,
-036A-E

25. - -
- -measures/

26. ITE , 
-039A

27. C ,
-

28. , -
- -manual-

29. Caltrans ti ti ,
- - ti -

ti - ti -complete- ti -
ti - -area- - - -

30. Caltrans , - -
- - -ped- -

countermeasures-toolbox-
31. ti ti -  

, -/ -
-06-

32. ti ti - ,
- - -89-02- -

33. - - -
- - - - -

34.

Page 34 of 35



12 

35.
-

36. Monterey-S T ti  
, -

-2020- ti
37. ti ti  

- -best- ti -report-0
38. ti ,

ti ti
ti

39.
40. , 

Sample ti ti Monterey Bay 

1. ti ti
- - ti -

ti - ti -complete- - -
2. ti ti ti ti  

-juan-
ti ti ti

3.  
- -and- -Street-Comp

4.
- -Plan

5.
- -9-plan/

Page 35 of 35


	 Agenda
	1. Quorum Check - Call to Order
	Memorandum

	2. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	3. CONSENT AGENDA
	1. Draft BPC Minutes
	Memorandum
	BPC Draft January 10, 2024 MINUTES

	2. Active Transportation Support Program Application 
	Memorandum
	TAMC Grant Application Bike Racks - Point Lobos Foundation
	PLF TAMC Bike Rack Grant Site Photos and Map
	Point Lobos Foundation Email


	4. Salinas Valley Safe Routes to School Plan and Part
	Memorandum

	5. Draft AMBAG Complete Streets Policy
	Memorandum
	Draft AMBAG Complete Streets Policy

	6. ANNOUNCEMENTS and/or COMMENTS
	7. ADJOURN


